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I. Personal Details

1, Name	 Karl ratBiiCH4IR
Date and place of birth	 Stuttgart, Germany, 15 September 1395
Address	 6 riassa Alessandro Volta, Coo, ItalY
Family Addreas	 90 Corso Impero, San Remo, Italy
Profession	 Businessman	 1
klducation	 High school diploma

, Laneuages	 German, French, Italian, 4nglish, Esperanto
1 ::arital status	 Divorced
, Height	 1.67 ni.

Build	 Slender
Hair	 Smooth, grey, bald in front
4.1;yes	 Light brown
Cokplexico	 Dark
.::outh	 Small

, Other characteristics 	 '1ustache; wears glasses.

Martin (deceased)
Adolfina !Virgt (deceased)
Wilhelm; 48 years old, businessman,
living in Ftiedrichhafen, Germany.
Clara 1.1:71, living in San Remoi'-
divorced since 1943.
Vittorio, 23 years old, working as a
clerk, living with his mother in S. Remo.
Rolando, 22 years old, student, living
with his mother in S. Reno.

II. Azsu,..E.E.A.J.Lrm3t..z..... Interrogation

He VAIS arrested in Como on 5 August 1946 by the Como uestura and handed
over to Genoa Unit.

III. Oxii._.e_..ztaron_l_or.relich_heworkell

He is suspected of having worked as an agent for ABAHR I (H) listed in the
German Primer.

IV - A3:121Y-141-na

1• Subject was born in Stuttgart, and lived there with his family, pursuing his
studies until the age of 17, when he received his high achool diploma. Soon
after, in January 1913, he went to Faris to perfect himself in optics and the
French language.

2. ! In the ophthalmic Institute in. Paris he ;4et an . Angle-Anerican oculist, Dr.
John ;.;1RDS, with whom he went to North.hfrica six months later ) to.studk
eye diseases. Subject made this trip as ur. FAXAU t s. secretary, and together
with he and other doctors, visited many parts of North Africa.

Early in July 1914 Subject, Dr. :LD.'iARDS, and two other doctors, sailed from
Tunis for Italy, landing in Genoa, where Dr. r.;D4 4,111:6 had an exhibit of optical
equipment which he had had imported. Later, Dr. :aleat.c.s opened an ophthalnie
institute on Via XX Settembre, and Subject continued tobe in his Confidence.

In Apri1 . 1915, a month before Italy entered the first -iorld	 Subject left
Dr. EDWARDS and went tø Lugano, Switzerland. After the war was declared, Dr. .
SaaRDS closed his institute and went to London.

5.: During the first few months in Lugano, Subject did not succeed in finding work,
and received financial aid from Dr. a.wire, with whom he corresponded. Later,
Subject worked as the representative of the MARTZLOTA brothers (of Roman
ori6in), sellers of foodstuffs; and in his spare time he gave Esperanto lessons.
Eventually he represented other companies, Degailler Dessus (in French Swit-
zerland), and another firm in German Switzerland.
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In 1915, the German Consul in Lueeno forwerded him an order to return to
Gamer-Ay for military service. Subject did not obey this order, and was de-
clared in default. Be continued to live in Lugano, but subject to the con-
trol of the Swiss police, to whom he had to report twice a week because he
no lancer had valid documents, having been declared in default for disobeying
the draft order. After the armistice, Subject was once again granted his
regular German passport.

In 1919, Subject cume to Italy as representative of various Swiss candy com-
panies, including the Courvoier Co., in Versate, and visiteduany Italian
cities in this capacity. In Varese he opened a warehouse of his products,
which he sold in nany cities. He chose 16 Via Crocifisso„ Milan as his
residence. He traveled back and forth between Italy and Switzerland in con-
nection with this work.

10. In Lugano he met re's. Clara VON ANLHASSY, wife of Count Gyula VON ANDEZSY,.

at a party in the home of friends. He; eiubseeeently becaoe very friendly with •
Clara (nee LLVI), and eventually became het lover, The Count divorced her,
and Subject married her in 1923. They went to live in Mien." 	 .

11,; In Italy Subject had several traveling salesmen working under him, soiling
his candy products 411 over the country. Subject himself made frequent trips
abroad, to Austria, Czechoslovakia, and Gereaaya to bey new products which he
brought to Italy. His salesean in Italy sold their goods and sent 'hie the
profits, to be used in making new purchases. Finally, however, these salesmen
sold him out and kept the profits for themselves, depriving him of all his
capital.- es a . result, he was forced to go to eermany to initiate another line
of work. He went to Maeonza, Gernuay, where his father-in-law, osee
had a textile warehouse, and went into business with him. .

12. In 1924, ahen he had saved a sum of merely, he returned to Italy and settled
in San Remo. In this city he worked as representative of German and Austrian
publishing and fine art houses, such as the Welf.Verlag of 'Munich, the Arthur
eOLF company in Vienna, and the Knit Ehirlick of Berlin, on behalf of which
he traveled all over Italy and Switzerland, making large profits.

13. In January 1925, Subject opened a bookstore of his own in San Remo, which his
wife nahaged. Later he openedeanother et . Alessio and Nervi, and one at
Viareggio during the Steamer months. In 1928-9 he made an egreement with the
creditors of the Ban Remo bookstore, and eventually gave up the Alessi°, eervi.
and Viareggie bookstores.

14. In 1930, he opened the International Agency on Via Vittorio eheernlele in an
Rene, which handled the buying, selling and leasing of real estate, the ad-
ministration Of houses, collecting rent, etc. He and his wife worked toe.
other in this agency,. and Made •a great deal Of money, This work. took him
to the French cities on the border e Henton,lientecarlo, Nice, etc..

After Hitler came to Power in Germany, Subject made several trips to Gen:larti

to help Jews escape to Italy', his agency having been recoemended Or this
Work by. Jews in Italy. He also worked as an intermediary in effecting the ex-
.chance Of real estate, allowing German Jews to exchange their property in
Germany for Aryan property in Italy. This eethange •wae sanctioned. by bath
German and Italian law. These activities, which were highly renunerative,
were brought to an end by the introduction of anti-Semitic laws in Italy.

V. "eaLBACHER's First Contact with an InforLetion Service

1. In 1934 or 1935 an agent of the Venezia insurance company in San Remo, whom
Subject had met in the course of his business dealings, asked Subject to give
him infornation on certain foreigners in San Remo. This reenest was repeated
frequently, and Subject finally thought best to inquire about the purpose to
which this information was to be put. The agent said that his ' ,chief', wanted
the inforuation !this chief", whose name he did not give, being a very in-
fluential person who had free entry to the Prefect's office.

6.
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2. A few deys later the agent of the Venezia came to see him and told him
that San Reumo was the center for an organization which was aorking for the
annexation of the Upper Adige to Austria. Because of Subject's extensive
acquaintances amone foreigners, he was requested to help uncover this or-
ganization. The Venezia agent said that he had already mentioned Subject
to his "chief", who had asked to see him in Bcrdiehore - a meting which
took place a few evenings later, in the hotel facing the Bordighera station.

•
3. They had a snack in the dining room of the hotel, and the "chief" euestioned

Subject about his general background and asked to see his passport. After
Subject had handed his passport ta him, he asked to be allowed to keep it
for a few days, but Subject refused unconditionally. The ' ,chief ,* had at
first insisted, but had to subeit to Subject's decision. He asked Subject
to furnish information on certain persons, and Subject at first agreed to do
so, but chanced his mind and told him the following day that he was not pre-
pared to collaborate with him. Subject never saw the ',chief" after that, and
his further contacts with the agent of the Venezia were of a strictly business
nature.

VI. .741,BACHSR , s,eeeting with er. and nre.,SORATZ

10. In April 1940 the German 0°116141 in San Remo, GiaBa, referred to !Subject a
certain nrs. Ineeborg SCHOLTZ (nee STEPHAN, daughter of Theodor) who had just
come froe. Berlin and was looking for a villa in San Reno. She did not find a
villa to her liking, and took a furnished apartnent on Como deeli Inglesi
(Cesa Berigo). A eenth later she received a carload of antieue furniture,
eilverware„ rugs, valuable paintings, a-W .:, which had coaa to Italy through
regUlar .Channels. Since Nrs. SCHOLTZ did not speak Italian, she left every-
thing to Subject, who took care of the arranging of her he.

2. curly in :lay 1940 her husband arrived in San Remo and introduced himself to
Subject as Gunther Hermann SCHOLZ:, ministerial counsellor of the German
istry for eartiee Production (his passport was issued by the ministry). At
first SCHOLTZ visited Subject frequently at his agency, but his visits bece
!Jere and more rare, and his attitude toward Subject iore frigid. SCHULTZ left
for Milan two or three days before Italy entered the war.

3. On 10 June 1940, when Italy entered the war, ;Irs. SCHULTZ called and asked
Subject to translate the Duce l s speech declaring Italy's entry into the war
side by aide with GermarlY.

4. The next day Feench airplanes made their first appearance over ,San Remo, and
bombs fell near the SCHOLTZ house. :Ts. SGHOLTZ was frightened, and again
called Subject asking him to find moans of transport enabling her to leave
San Rea°. Her husband had telephoned• to her from ?lien telling her to• leave
at once with their here valuable podseesions. Subject succeeded in finding a
vehicle into which he leaded Ira. SCHOLTZ, her child and their valuables.
They went to Genoa, where officials of the German Conaulate General were
awaiting her at the Colombo Hotel. The fallowing day she left for Milan, and
thence for Lake Garda, from where Subject later received news.

5. In September 1940 !Ire. SCHOLTZ returned with her child, :larion, a girl of 8
! years, end took the setae apartnent in Sun Reno.. Her husband returned to Ger-
, eany. Le.s. SCHULTZ donenstrated her gratitude to Subject by inviting him Often
to her hone. Their friendship becane vary aloe°, and Subject alone was
trusted•with nrS. SCHOLTZ's affairs. Her husband Calft0 to visit the family in

!San Reme in Hoveeber 1940.

6. On this occasion, SC1IOLT2 cane to thank Subject for all that he had done for
' his wife and child, and exi.lained that previously he had been very cool to-
ward him because the Nazi authorities in San Remo and the province of Imperia

; considered him to be an anti-Nazi and u suspected agent of the neuxiene Bureau.
SCHULTZ earned hie to be careful because the Nazi authorities were looking for
an excuse to have him interned in Gernany. He also advised Subject to diverce
his Jewish wife, wheel the authorities termed an Itenemr. SCHOLTZ left after a
few clays to return to Germany.

. Hrs. SCHJLTZ told Subject that, in addition to being a counsellor of the ti-n-
istry of Aulame Prouuction, her husband was also director of a chemical, phar-
maceutical, and dye syndicate, which had factories and branches all over Europe.
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Branches in Italy eere the S.A. Bohringer company in Milan and the Italcasa
in Trieste, the latter being ceded subsequently to Uontecatini, but with
SCHULTZ continuing as a member of the board of directors.

8. The declaration, of war had paralyzed the work of the International AgencY;
and when SCHOLTZ returned to Sun Remo in kebruary or march 1941, Subject
asked him for work as repreuentutive in Italy of the 4yes of the Lorlin con-
any. This assignment eae given him, but Subject eels unsuccessful in his

attenpts to sell the products in Italy. In the lee:Intim the Berlin firm sent
word that it would not be able to export any more of its products for the
time being because they were needed in Germany. SCHOLTZ advised him to apply
at the Italcasa in Trieste, but Subject did net receive a favorable reply, be-
cause the firm was being reorganized.

Subject had in the mantine become Ors. SCEOLTZ's lover, and through her hus-
band obtained in the spring of 1941 a la/suet-passer for France (in two
languages, 'Tench and Ceram; a white card mith a red line, issued in Paris
by the Franco-Glarean authorities and valid for crossing line of demarcation).
The following itinerary was indicated on the paiesez-passer: Paris, Marseilles,
Nice, and vice versa. 4th this document Subject was able to travel almost
anywhere in France. Subject had this pass renewed every three months through
SCHOLTZ. Apart from the laiseez-paseer, Subject also applied for an exit and
reentry visa at the Imporia euestura.

10. Subject continued to frequent the hone of ::re. SCHOLTZ. In the suemer of
1941, Subject told her of his fear that he might be drafted, since other
Gereens living in the province of Ieperia had been called up. Mrs. SCHOLTZ
reaueured him, saying that she would speak to her husband when he returned to
San Remo, and that he would arrange everything. She explained that her hue-
band was very influential, and confided that he was a :ember of the Ati.liattp

depending directly from the Berlin headivarters.

U. when SCHULTZ returned to San Remo in October 1941, he told his wife that she
was to return to Berlin with all their household e4uipriont. It was at this
time that Subject began to work for SCHULTZ.

vII. 71ILB;iCfUt' s Introduction to the

1. On the occasion of this trip, SCHOLTZ also went to Monte Carlo, taking
Subject along with him. In : .r.onte Carlo, SCHOLTZ stayed at the Hotel de
Paris, while Subject eent to the Hotel de Russie. In Monte Carlo =WM
told Subject that his Wife had mentioned to him Subject's fear of being
drafted and gave him to understand that he aould take preventive leasures.

2. In the course of their conversations, SCHOLTZ told Subject that he belonged
to the 113.141R and that in this service he visited the leading capitals of
Zurope.

3. scHan premised Subject that from time to time he would give him a job to
do, and told him to refer to him at once if he had any difficulty in San
Remo about the draft or with the Nazi leaders. Subject accepted these pro-
posals gladly.

Shortly thereafter, SCHOLZ:: asked Subject to go to Marseilles to bey back
copies for the lust two menthe of the newspaper “Le Senafore“ u navigation
daily sold at all the newetands and published in Marseilles. Imel Subject
returned, SCHOLTZ asked him what his expenses had been, and paid for all
the cost of the trip, inciuding food and lodging.

5. Subject insists that for this and for other conmiesions done for SCUOLTZ
he received no fixed pay nor indeed any pay at all except traveling expenses.

6. SCHUTZ told him that he would extract interesting information from the
French newspapers bought by the Subject to be sent to the service in Berlin,
and boasted that he was able to do quickly what others would upend a great
deal of time doing. Subject cannot, however, furnish any particulars on
this aork, for SCHUTZ did not allow him to share in it.
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o SCHATZ returned to Germany uithout having aguin gone to Italy. Subject
returned from Monte Carlo to Sun Remo and helped .irs. SCHUTZ to send
her furniture to Germany.

. In January 1942 SCHULTZ who had just come from Paris, invited Subject to
go to :!onte Carlo, and Subject went to see him • there at the Hotel de Paris.
They had 'a conversation in the course of which SCHOLTZ asked Subject to •
find a neutral ship to be used by the Germen Navy. This ship was to be
sent to Italy to be used as a target for the aerio-itorpedo school set up
by the Germans in Italy. Subject at once began to make inquiries, and
finally found a Danish ship in . Hareeillee harbor, the captain of which said
that the firm which owned it would be uilling to give it up. .SCHOLTZ had
gone buck to Berlin in the meantime, 'and Subject wrote to him at the com-

pany of which he uas the director, without receiving a reply.

9. In Dece:ber 1941, MrS. SCHOLTZ and her daughter had left for Garmisch-
Patenkirehen, to pass the holidays with SCHZTZ. In February 1942, all the
SCMLTZ family came buck to San Remo and took a furniShed apartment on Via
Giorgi Pallavicini wliich Subject found fer , them. 'alien Subject mentiened
the Danish ship to him, SCHATZ said that he was no longer intereuted in it.

10. A few days later, SCHOLTZ and Subject went to 'ia*seilles to exchange an
• old painting which SCHULTZ had bought from a Russian antique dealer named

&Wearies Czacearisa BIRTSCHAHSW, formerly living in a small hotel in	 .
Marseilles the name of which Subject has forgotten. The latter had ;:wevidesly
had a shop in laris, and SCHUTZ had been his client for some time. In
seilles, SCHULTZ took a room in the Hotel de Wailes which he had .reserved,
while Subject stayed in another mal l hotel the name of Which he does not re-
member. The next day they went to see B1RTSCHAASKI to exchange the painting,
tind to make up the difference &CHOI= paid .500. He also bought an anticade
jewel ease for which he paid in (tellers. B1RTSCHANSKT I s wife was present at
this transaction. .

11. Subject says that SCHOLTZ gambled heavily and often visited the Sun Remo
Casino and . :Ionte Carlo. He always had large sumo ofmioney in foreign cur-
rency, particularly dollars.

12. On the occasion of the aforementioned transaction, B1RTSCHAASKI mentioned a
Tintoretto which he wanted to sell. Subject expressed his interest, wanting .
totake.it to Italy. He asked for 4 photograph of the painting. BIR11,3CILIMIff
did not have one on hand, but promised to bring one to hin the next time he
went to nonte Carlo.

13. After about 24 hours . in :i:aseilleS-Subjectand•SCHOLTZ left f0 Ticalte Carlo.
SCHoLTZstayed at the Hotel de Parley but Subject proceeded on his way back
to San Remo. During the stay in 3irseilles, SCHATZ had left Subject elone
foe 4 time, to attend to affairs ,related to his service. During, the return
trip frma.mrseilles to :lente Carle, SCHOLTZ repeated to Subject the ned-
e$Sity of.divorcing,his . Jewish wife, since severe measures were being taken
against Aryans married to Jews and not yet divorced. 	 -

VIII. SCHOLTZ: Additional Details 

1. SCHUTZ is now about 48 or 49 years old. HO is a native of . Silesia, and has
degrees in law and national economy. During the first iórld .:arbe had been

• an artillery officer and had the rank of captain when he was discharged. .
AMong other decorations he had the Iron Cross of the first order. After the
1918-.9 armistice, he tried his hand at journalism, and then entered big
business in the Rhine and Ruhr regions.

2. In his capacity as director of the DrAG Chemical-Pharmaceutical Syndicate
in Berlin, SCHOLTZ traveled continually to the leading cities in Europe
(3russels, Paris, AmstONiam, Prague, Vienna, Budapest, Bucharest, Belgrade,
Sofia, and later :•lan and Trieste, and even :iadrid).
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The Berlin office had acquired, or was ac %airing, chemical factories in
those cities, which it was SCHWLTZ's duty to visit and inepect. These fee-
tories dere acquired with discretion, in order not to arouse the suspicion
of the country in which they were located. Ina convereution which Subject
had with SCHOLTZ in San Remo, the latter once said that he was very muCh
worried because he needed a million pengoes to bey a pharnucewtical products
factory in Budapest. SCHOLTS did not want to go to the German or HurUarian
currency exchange agencies, and asked Subject to help him, since he Had had
wide experience in export problems, etc. Subject, therefore, made a deal
with the Hungarian IedislasKANITZ, ca-owner of the flower export firm
(Antonio =GAMIC) in San Remo, whereby a ' million pengoes worth of flowers
would be sent to Hungary, payment to be nude in Italy in lire. (KaNITZ 	 .
knew nothing about the purpose td which the pengoes would be put in Hungary.)
In this manner SCHULTZ would have at his disposal the necessary capital,
without arousing any suspicion. This plan was not carried out, however, be-
cause SCH-21TZ foend anOther means. The factories acquired in this way re-
tained their original namei and personnel, but Were directed by Germane sent
from Berlin. Subject recalls that the director of the Milan factory was the
German SILB31ZAHN.

3. It is Subject's opinion that SCHOLTZ's work on behalf of the Diwag corporation
served as cover for his AB3LE1t work. When SCHULTZ went to France, he always
did his best not to uppear to be a German. He always wore civilian clothes,
and with Subject he always used the sums name. Ho one would normally have
suspected him of counter-inteLligence vreok, beeumse he always introduced him-
self as an official of the Ninietry of rtime ivoduction. Subject says that
SCHULTZ Wee extremely reserved with him, and tole him only activities which
he considered unimportant.

4. SCHOLTZ had a mistress in Monte Carlo name Jo. He had brought her from Paris,
and she stayed with him at the Hdtel de Paris. Subject states that in the
sunmer of 1942 he took her to Berlin, and he is of the opinion that ehe was
certainly his confident. In the fall of 1943 he took her to riadrid, where he
had shortly before sent his wife and daughter. Thus he took both his wife and
his mistress to Spain, providing for them through chemical establishment there.
Subject never saw any of them after they left for spain, and received no neae
from them.

IX. The TintOretto Affair

1. At the end Of 'aatch 1942, Subject went to :Ionte Carlo and eau BIRTSCHA•51Cr in
a hotel the name of which he does slot remember. The latter gave him a photo-
graph of the Tintoretto, fixing the price of the painting at $00,000 lie.
It was agreed that the sum should be deposited in Florence with a person Or
bank to be deiignated by-BiRTSCHAiGa, Since he intended to buy a villa or
Wilding near Florence where he would pass hierdeclining yeare...ISCHOLrZirad
promised to clear him with the Italian authorities, thus facilitating his entry:
into Italy. Soon afterwards, Subject.retdrned to San Remo and had several re-
productions of the photograph nude which he sent to various contacts all over
Italy, offering to se21 • the'painting for 1,500,000 lire.

iCar4herita SASSM, 	 and Count i',:a1F.a;iCE,

1. In April 1942, a. Geraan woman named BARTHAND Who had married an Italian and
was living in San Remo introduced Subject to Tlargherita . SASSEN, who waa living
in San Rilmo, in the home of a Suits worm, Mrs. BI ,RTSCHING111, at No. 2 Corso .
23 7.1arzo. '(This house was reiuisitioned when SASSaN was arrested.)

2. SASSER received money from Switzerland, the source and virpose of which was un-
known to Subject; and also German acqgaintances who had cone to San Remo for
a vacation or rest sometimes gave het Italian money before they left, ex-
changing lire for the marks sent by her family in Germany.

A certain G.24RKE, a friend of Subject, invited him to go to Rome. GIME had
previously lived in San Rene, and was then in Rome as interpreter for the
ITALUFT or LAFLJAFFE. Subject decided to go spend a few days in Rime wit:1 his
friend, but before leaving, he arranged with SASJAZ to rake the. trip also, for
she had expressed the desire to visit Rome.
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She went to Rome shortly after he did, and he not her at the station. SASJEU
also stayed in GhltKiOs home, a furniahed apartment on Via (or Vicolo) Sah .
Pietro. She beca:ae Subject's mistress at this time. They returned to Sari
Remo after about 4 days.

4. During his stay in Rome, Subject chanced to meet a certain Count PPIINOH
at a Oernan mess. GMKE had introduced P62PAACHS to Subject in San . Remo while
he was still living there. Count Pi2iPiiiCHE belonged to an old family of the
French nobility which had gone to Germany centuries ago to escape the re-
li6ious persecutions (Huguenot). Count RilWANCHE had lived for a while in
California, and then in Italy, settling first in Bolzano and later in San Remo.
He as known to be anti-Fascist and anti-Nazi, and preferred to live in poverty
in San Remo rather than go to Gemany. At the end of 1941 he was called to
serve as interpreter for the German army and was sent to Sicily. In Catania
he was arrested by the Italian police because the BolZano ,:uestura had re-
ported hia .to be anti-Fascist. He was sent from Catania to Rome to undergo
a psychiatric examination, and was later sent to MInich. Subject heard. nothing
further concerning him.

5. GERM was formerly a Naval .(submarine) officer, during the first :lorld Jar, and
as such still receives a pension from the German State. He was married to a
woman whose . father was Aryan but whose mother was a Jewess. For this reason
he had not been rehabilitated as an officer, but was called to serve as an
interpreter. He was .dismissed by the 'MINT later for his anti-Nazi views.

6. • In 1938, :largherita SASSEN had left Germany to go to Nice to visit a friend,
a certain Kate CLE:761ITS (? Katbe Klenentz), a woman of German origin but
married to an Znglishman. She lived at the AlhaLbra Hotel at her friend's ex-
pense. In 1940, she was interned by the French, but released after the French
armistice and sent to Germany via Italy .. Passing through San Remo, she stayed
there for a tine, awaiting the approval of the Italian authorities, which she
eventually received and continued on her way to Germany. During her intern-
ment in France she had developed kidney trouble, and doctors advised her to
live in a. mild cli::-ate. Since the German climate was not conducive to her
good health, she requested and obtained the permission of the German authori-
ties to go to Italy. She decided to live in San Remo.

7. During her stay in ace, she met an Austrian 'woman, ;Ts. rASLOUN,, who was
married to a Brazilian Jew who was later arrested by the Gestapo and interned
in the Trancy camp.

XI. The Tintoretto Again

1. Before leaving Hone, Subject asked Gau to try to sell the Tintoretto„ and
sent him a photograph of the painting from San Reno. Subject did not leave
San Remo again until October or .November 1)42. nrs. SCHOLTZ was in Germany,
and Subject continued to be SASSZN's lover. Subject declares that he did
not meet SCHJLTZ all that summer, and confined his activities to his Inter-
national 'tgency. Late in October '1.s. SCHOLTZ returned to San Remo with her
child, and Subject reswied his relations with her.

2. gavenber 1942, Subject received a letter from GERKit; in Raw, who said that he
had found sons one prepared to buy the Tintoretto, and asked him to come to
Rome to make the sale. He told . Urs. SCHULTZ about this, and she urged him to
go to Rome (she was due to receive half of the profits of the sale of the Tin-
toretto, for her husband had not wanted tocompromise . himself, because of hit
position).

3. Subject went to Rome in the conlpany of 3ASS24.. In Rome, Gi1 ...:1; introduced him
to a . German officer named RAUCH . or RAUSCH, a former university professor who
was in Rome to Organize art expositions. RAUSCH was in touch with a . German
Commission of :at Lxperts who had come tO Italy to buy antiques, and to whom
he had shown the photograph of the Tint oretto obtained URIC& The Commission
had expressed interest and . considered buyine'the painting for the Duce or for
the King of Italy as a gift, once its authenticity had been established.
Subject was told to bring the Tintoretto to RoMe, and returned to San Remo,
where he informed Mrs. SCHOLTZ of these events. She in turn telegraphed to
her husband, asking him to Come and to give his approval to the sale.
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4. Subject went immediately to !Tante Carlo alone, to talk with KIRTSCHANSKr.
lie. found him at the hotel at which he had given him the photograph ( he had
since settled there). BIRTSCHWASKY vies overjoyed by the news broueht to
him by Subject, but said that he could not hand the painting over ieeediately
beceuee it as not in his possession. Subject had the impression that'this
was merely an excuse, and that BIRTSCHANSKY distrusted him because he scarcely
knew him. In fact, HINTSCHANSKY said that he did not want to conclude the
deal unless SCHOLTZ was present. Subject saicithat he would return soon with
SCHOLTZ, whose wife had already wired him to come. Subject returned to San
Remo to await SCHATZ's arrival.

5. Early in December 1942, Subject returned to elonte Carlo with SCIeZTZ.' Sub-
ject stayed at the Hotel de Rue sic as usual, while SCHULTZ stayed at the
Hotel de eerie, where his mistress JO was waiting for hie. They went to-
gether to see BIRTSCHANSKY who had the Tintoretto with him. It was agreed
that the painting should be turned over to Subject, with SCHATZ serving
as guarantee for him. If the painting was not Sad within teo . ronths ., it
was to be returned to BIRTSCHAILeY or else paid for by SCHATZ. No money
was paid in security since SCHOLTZ was a good client of long standing.

6. The painting was packed without it teams and taken to San Remo by Subject,
who went through the cuetoce at Menton without declaring it. SCHOLTZ stayed
in Monte Carlo with his mistress. In San Remo the painting was left in Mrs.
SCI-hiLTZ t e mon in the Seise pension.

7. After three or four days, Subject took the painting to the'Parodi Art Gallery
in San Remo to try to sell it. A German living in San Hee°, Hermann GRILL,
served as. middleuan .between ':IEILBACHEU and three or four prospective buyers.
Ho decision was made, and everything was postponed until the next day. That .
afternoon Subject learned that the San Remo Public Security Commissar,
GARGaNO, was looking for him. He presented-hinself voluntarily at the police
station, and was asked Whether he had a Tintgretto in his possession. Subject
replied, in the affirmative and GARGANO asked to see it. Subject went to the
Swiss Pensione with two police agents, and brought out thaTintoretto, which
he took to the Commissariat. The Coe:deser t GARGANO, then asked him where
it came frora and how he had brought it into Italy. Subject at first refused
to answer, but finally confessed that the painting came from Monte Carlo and
was the property of an antique dealer named ZACCARIAS 0 who had entrusted him
with its sale in Rome. Subject did not mention. SCHOLTZ or any one else, nor
the price, 300,000 lire, agreed ueon by BIRTSCHANSKY. He tad the Commissar
that the Tintoretto was valued at 1 0500,000 lire. The Comeissaraccused him
of having crossed the border without paying duty on the painting, and told'
him to consider himself at the disposition of the police. 'He kept the painting
at the police station because he entertained doublts regarding its origin.

8. The same day Subject was put in prison without further interrogations . and re-
aained interned for about three and a half nenths. During this period Subject
asked to be allowed to conmunicate with the German Consul in sail Remo,
GRABOSISKY, with 1rs. SCHULTZ, and with his mistress Margherita SASSEN. He
sent :1/.8. SCHATZ a letter asking her to tell her husband of his arrest, so
that he night .help him to be released. He also wrote to the German Consul,
and GRABOASKY came several times to the prison to See him. atABTASKY knew
that Subject was working for the Abwehr becauee he had told hirlso, but when
he arote to Genoa and R4C0 to have information on hie, none of the 'authorities
knew of him. GRABOeSKY told Subject later that Nrs. SMOLT% had cone to Ger-
eany and that SCHULTZ himself had sent a wire saying that he would arrive in
San Remo in January 1943. February came, however, and scnouz etill had 'not
appeared. He later sent a telegram to GRABO7SKY saying that he was not able
to came to San Remo. GRABOWY asked Subject to tell him the name of some
Abwehr officials who would. be able to help hie. Subject says that he did not
give him any names for the simple reason that he did not know any.

9. Subject alsolmardained correspondence with lareherita SASSEN, and when he saw
that GRABCOSKi t s attempts to help him were fruitless, he told his eisteess . to •
go to Rene to see the German'Ambassadgr. Since Subject admits that relations
between GRABO.LKY and himself were not of the beet, it is curious that (.1B0-
5K! wrote a letter of introduction for SASSEN.to the Ambassador in Romp.
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Subject admitted that the letter was written only after the intervention of
the SCHOLT 1 s. SASS went to Rome and spoke with the Germen Ambassador.
ather by reason of this interview or merely as the result of the investiga-
tions made by the Italian. Publid security, ';.7311BACHila was released twenty days
after his mistress returned from Row.

10. During his stay in prison, other Germans living in San Remo, and particularly
a Won= nano izniu, had occasion to revile aiaLBACHLR and his mistress and to
express the wish that Subject stay in jail for a long time. It was for this
reason that Subject wrote to SASSELI that he would like to Send ItitiMIB to .
Dachau. Subject 9 s actual words aay be found in the letter attached, Appendixwir e

11. Subject was released in 'March 1943, and, to thank caao.Da for his efforts on
his behalf, sent a bouquet of flowers to his wife. Ho gave his passport to
the Consul for renewal, for it had expired. His French laieses-passer, given
him by SCHATZ, had also expired, He Was, therefore, inactive all that spring
and summer.

12. Immediately after his release, the San ReMc public Security Commissariat sent
him a notice informing him that the Tintoretto was being held at the Inperia
province custewis office because it had been brought into Italy without payment
of duty. Subject went to Impetla and paid 22,000 lire duty for the painting,
which was then given buck to him. He brought it back to San aemo. In the
fall of 1943 Subject deposited the Tintoretto in a bank in lerano. It was re-
mcved in October or November 1945 and taken to his new residence in Como. It
was later taken to /5ilan and left with Prof. Ivan BERNAIU, at 2 Via Dino Com-
pagnis where it was found and confiscated after the arrest of Subject.

XII. Renewed Contact with the ABaSHR

1. Because of poor health and also because of the lack of a passport, Subject re-
rained inactive until October 1943. During that period, he wrote to SCHOLTZ
and his wife, but received no answer. In October 1943 he was asked to report
to the German Consulate General in Genoa. In Genoa he was received by a person
who had replaced the Consul General (whose name he does not remember) who told
him that he was to go to Berlin and report to Lt. Col. ROSralLaT.R at the Abwehr
general command. He was given a passport and visa and left sEurtly afterward
for Berlin, where he reported to Lt. Col. ROSEarAnat, who told him that he had
received a request for information on Subject, who was mentioned as being a
member of the Abwehr. He also asked Subject 4bout the Tintoretto„ and Subject
explained how he and SCHOLTZ had reached an agreement about the painting, and
how SCHOU% had afterwards lost interest and left him for three and a half
months in jail in San Remo. ROSMUITER did not knoa of SCHOLTZ I s relations
with - MLBACHIR until later, when SCHULTZ himself explained the circumstances
of his recruitment of Subject. After Subject had given his explanation, RO33H-
Labe gave him 200 marks for the expenses of his trip and sent him to the Zden
Hotel, telling him to report again the next day.

20 The next day, as he was returning to ROSegillaTilt l e office, he Aet SCHOLTL . acct-
dently in the office of the secretary. Of course Subject asked him why he had
not done anything for him while he was in prison. SCHULTZ be gged his pardon
and said that he had had urgent business in Hungary and Bulgaria Which had
made it impossible for him to go to Italy. SCHOLN had already exLaained the
entire affair to ROSEASITER 0 who wanted to talk to Subject again. SCHOLTZ
said that he was about to leave for Paris, and from there tJ go to Madrid, where
he had left his family. He was going there for reasons pertaining to his in-
telligence work, and refused to give Subject his address in madrid. He promised
Subject that he would do his best to have him transferred to 71adrid, but the
transfer never took place. Subject states that he never saw either SCHOLTZ or
his wife after that. SCHULTZ had told him that he had settled the matter of the
Tintoretto with BIHTSCHANSKY, and that Subject should sell it and give him half
of the profit. Subject says that he did nothing gore to try to sell-it, and it
remained in his possession.
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3. Subject had his second conference 4th Lt. Col. ROSEULLIMR, who asked hin
first of all hether he were still living with his Jewish wife. Subject
said that he was, but that he was about to secure a divorce (he au' legalizedivorced shortly afterwards). Col. ROSeVIEITAR then gave him an AB.aeiR
mission. The eehrmacht had prepared a guide of all the factories in unoccu-
pied southern erance, and Subject was to go to Toulon and eenton and vicinity
and check the inforretion for accuracy, then he had done this, he was to send
a report to Col. ROSEHLEITER at a Feldpost number which Subject has forgotten.
ReSENLEITeM eave him 500 marks, 10,000 francs, and 2,000 lire to cover his ex-
penses. He gave hira a laissez-passer valid from Berlin to earseilles, and a
letter for the Frufstelle in earseilles, where he later obtained a laissez-
passer for occupied and unoccupied France. ROZULaITaR recoemended to Subject
that he become a pereanent member of the Abwehr, saying that if he fulfilled
his nissions he would be well paid.

4. Subject also net a Capto BAUER, Col. ROUNLLITeR's aide. :then all arrangecents
had been made Subject left Berlin for Narseilles, where he was given a laissez-
passer for all France. He visited the various German commands along the
Riviera,-learning details relevant to his mirk, which he coeplemented by re-
ferring to directories and telephone books. He then deee up a report and sent
it to Col. ROSZJLEIT3t. Two nonthe passed and no news cane Cram Re6SNL1ITelte
though Subject wrote to him regularly. Finally, he received a letter from fiCeeN-
LEITER stating that inadequate lines of coemunication made it impossible to
give him another assignment, but invited him to report to a coeutund near at
hand. Subject admits having dealt in the black market between France and Italy
in the two emoths during which he was awaiting ROSeHLEITER's reply.

XIII. Raoul aNizzi. Dolne BEAeN 4, and Prince :amp 

1. Subject . made frequent trips between San Remo and France, and it became his
custom to take French perfumes to Italy and to return to France with foodstuffs.
A certain BUCLIONe m an Italian living in San R	 me Remo at that ti but a former
resident of Monte Carlo, where he awned a butcher shop, whom Subject had net
in connection with his International Agency, asked him to take food supplies
to his friend Raoul GHaZZI, an engineer, in Monte Carlo. Subject agreed,
and thus made the acquaintance of GH6.2I, who later introduced him to Prof.
Dclne DEHAN, a Delgain living in nonte Carlo, and erince COLOMA, an Italian
living in Ionte Carlo. Subject eventually joined these three in eorking on
wartime inventions on behelt of the Germans.

2. Engineer Meal, is a native of Lombardy. During the first world war (1915-18)
he worked with the Italian SIM as an agent in Berne. He W8,3 later put on trial
in Italy for having appropriated funds entrusted to him to pay his informers.
He subsequently went to France and took a degree in engineering in Paris. He
married a French girl and settled in Monte Carlo as advisor at a Condamine
factory. He then founded the Inventors' Association of the Principality of
Monaco and was aepointed secretary. At the outbreak of the recent war, GHEZZI
was one of the few Italians who was not interned. It is thought thateleeday
have been connected with the Frenoh IS, but no definite prooris available.
When the Germans arrived, he placed himself at their disposition, offering them
all the inventions produced by the partnership. It is likely that he did in-
telligence and counter-intelligence work on behalf of the Germans, but evidence
is lacking. During one of the trips he took to San Reno with Subject, GHL:ZI
was arrested at the frontier by the Italian police for an undetermined reason.
However, there was a German commander frau Onto Carlo in the car who inter-
vened and secured his release. The grou, aent together to San Reno and re-
turned to France. GHEZZI has probably eot returned to Italy since that time.
Two weeks before Subject left France, GHELLI left :!onte Carlo for an unknown
destination. During his stay in Milan, Subject learned that GHEZZI is now in
Nice, and that his hone has been requisitioned by French authorities. 	 .

3. In the spring of 1944, Subject was introduced to Prof. Dolne DEHAU by GHEZZI.
Dolne DEHAN was born in Liege, Belgium, and was a Fellow in the University of
Liege, on the electro-chemical faculty. During the first eerie' ear he served
with the French General Staff. After the war, he spent his time with his in-
ventions, the more successful ones being exhibited at the Anvers Exposition.
He later went to Monte Carlo (exact date unknown) and set up a small electro-
cheeical laboratory.
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He went into partnership with GHELZI and he also worked for the Germans.
In August 1944 he ewe to Italy with Subject and settled first in Sale, then
in =an Varese, and Como. In June 1945 he left Como with his wife (also ,a
Bsigima) for Switzerland, and is probably now in Lausanne.

Prince COLONNA stated that he is married to an Englishwoman, whose uncle a
certain HALT or HOL (HALL?), is head of the London 1$. Through this contact
COLONNA secured work with the British 1S, and also with the British Havy, as
an inventor, during the first dead ahr. He came to Italy after 1918 and .
worked for the Italian IS. He later went to Aonte Carlo and got in touch
with GILLaI. Like GHSZZI, he was not interned at the outbreak of the recent
war, and subsequently put his inventions at the disposition of the Garman corn-
mend. In Juno 1944, the German SD War GOHL (a man mach feared along the
French . Cote Azure),. on his return free. Berlin, went directly to Prime COLONNA
in Monte Carle and had many secret talks with him at which GHEZZI also parti-
cipated. Since COLONNA . and GOHL . had not previously net, the well-known 70L-
RIG. introduced the two . before these conversations could take elaoe. .0n
this occaaion„ COLONNA , turned over to GOHL and GHEZZI plans for an invention
and relevant decumente, which Gat sent to Berlin immediately by air. Subject
learned all these facts froa Dane DZHAN, having been Liven the task by the
Paris Heereswaffenant of finding out Who the person was Who came frOvi Berlin
to get in touch with the inventors who had been working for them.: Subject
went to see Capt. 1VIVSTER, post commander in Nice

' 
who accompanied him to the

SD headluartere in Nice, located in a villa in Ciraiez where he spoke with the
commander, MIL or KEIL. He learned that the individUal Who had cone . frea Ber-
lin was Maj. GOHL, who had an office in that very building. They, went to see
him, and were told that GHEZZI l a and COLONNA l s inventions were of immediate
interest to the Berlin SD, and that they did not want am] one to interfere, in-
cluding the Paris command. Subject reported to Paris and the command there
replied that it would get in touch with Berlin directly. The Allies landed on
the Cote Azure shortly thereafter, and Subject had no further contact with
GHZZZI and COLONNA.

XIV, LELBACHEW.s Activities in France 

1. When Subject met GIEZZI and learned that he had been in touch with the Germans
for over two years and was working on secret weapons for them, he offered to
intervene for GHEZZI at the Heereswaffenant Command in Paris, to which he had
offered his inventions. Thus it happened that after a period a German Major
came from Paris in the company of SCHOLLERPER„ an engineer, to examine their
work, outlines of which GHEZZI and Dolne MIRAN had sent to Paris. At this
time, Subject was introduced to the visitors, and he served thereafter as in-
ternediary between the Monte Carlo inventors and the Paris Command. During
the course of this activity, ' Subject had the opportunity of going a few tines
to Paris, Cannes, Marseilles, and ace. In Paris he was given a document
allowing him to circulate freely through occupied and unoccupied France and
in Italy as far as San Reno. "Athin this radius he had the right to ask any
German command for aid.

In February 1944,- Subject settled in the Hotel de Palmier in Monte Carlo with
liars/write SASSEN. During this period he had constant Contact with the allonte
Carlo conmand and with the Naval Command in Nice, and occasional contact with
the SD in Nice (particularly with Maj. GOHL). He sometimes went to the'Hotel
Montfleury in Cannes to talk with the hued of the TOUT organization. Subject
asserts to have maintained these contacts in relation to the scientific work
of the Monte Carlo inventors. These circumstances persisted until the Allied
landing in Southern France, at which time Subject left France for Italy.

XV. 3E/LBACHigR t s Additional Contacts in France 

1. During his stay in Monte Carlo Subject met Professor Ivan BERNAIM, a Jew, who
is now living in nilan at 3 Via Dino Compagni. Subject first met him at the
Hotel de Palmier in ”ante Carlo, early in 1944. He later moved to the Holder
Hotel. At that time all Jews living in the Principality of Monaco had to
have residence permits issued by the German command and valid for only three
months. Subject intervened for BEM= to secure the renewal of his permit,
and this was the beginning of a warm friendship. &MALI had been living in
Milan, but had fled to France to escape race persecution. He had left his
mother and his sister behind in .Nilan, and it was thought that they were de-
ported by the Germans.
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In Monte Carlo he worked as an anttiue dealer. Subject states categorically
that he never used BZRNAIM as an informer and that he does not believe that
he ever worked as an informer either for the French service or for the German
police. Subject left MRNAIM behind in Monte Carlo When he returned to Italy,
but net him later in Milan. BERNAIU offered at that time to help him in the
sale of antiques. Subject gave him the Tint oretto to sal, but no buyer bad
yet been found at the time of Subject's arrest.

2. Another acquaintance of Subject in lonte Carlo was a certain LARSEN, of Danish
origin, from Paris, where he conducted a technical agency the purpose of which
was helping inventors to obtain patents. He lived at the Hotel de Palmier in
Monte Carlo, as did Subject. Subject declares that LARSEN did not carry on
any activities.

3. Another of Subject's contacts was the former kabassador of Poland to Rome, ahose
name. he doeis not rommber. . He was the last.Polieh iezbassador to Rosie, and,
not wanting to return to Giariflan,..occupied Poland, he had settled in Monte Carlo,

4. Subject also knew Mt. and Mrs. FECCHINO, Italians, but naturalized French
citizens, who owned the Hotel de Palmier. Subject insists that with these per-
sons as with LARSEN and the Polish Ambassador, he had no relations Other than
merely friendly ones.

5. -:Jerner VGORINGat, a German working with the . AB.1121R, had been in San Remo at
the outbreak of the war and had stayed there doing nothing. Subject met him
there in 1940. He was working at that time for a flower export firm in Bora-7.
chore. lute in 1943, Subject met him again in Monte Carlo. At that time he
had a luxurious automobile and lived at the Regina Hotel; he confided to Sub-
ject that he was working for the Allik.ER under a certain KIRSTLU in San Remo.
Subject made a few trips with him from and to France, but he denies working
with him in the service. Regarding VOHRINGal l e work, Subject states that he.
'knows only that when he was in Monte Carlo, VOHRINGle was interested in French
prisoners in concentration camps in Italy.-

6. Subject also knew Capt. Gino POUZI, an Italian officer whom he had net at the
Hotel de Palmier, where he vas staying. Relations with him were on a friendly
basis. dhen the Allies landed in Southern France, Subject accompanied pomziin his car to a point near Turbie (2) bordering on the partizan zone. . He
learned after the liberation that PONZI had died. near Ventiniglia (See (SS
SI-Nice :lesion Lvos-Gino).

7. Jacques SABATILR lived at the Regina Hotel in Monte Carlo, as did VOHRINGER,and Was Introduced to Subject by VOIIRINGBR. He is of French nationality, and
aus working for the Abwehr under VOHRINGER. Subject met him two or three times,
always in VOHRINGaM's company, but never had any relations with him. In' April
1945, during the uprising in northern Italy, Subject met SABATILM on,a street
car in Milan but did not speak to him.	 .

8. Bernard)‘PORTSCNI of	 . 't	 ;	 _14 of the BOP' 4 Hotel. in lXvite
wali-a7Efose friend of VaIRIN ZR, but Subjec • oee n. now whether. E;

was working for the Abwehr. Subject had only a speaking acquaintance with
PORTSCH. He learned later through VARINCrat that PORTSCH had lost a leg when
he was oachinegunned in Italy. Subject states that he has not seen FORTSCH
since he left Monte Carlo. He insists that he did not know any one el.se , who
was in touch with the Germans.

XV/. Transfer to Italy: Activities and tIontacts

1. Subject left France with Margherita SASSZU shortly after the Allied beachhead
on Cote Azure. They went in the car driven by Mario CORTI, a professional
driver. They drove to San Remo, stayed there for two days, and proceeded to
Guazzora, near Alessanuria, where they stayed in CUaI l s home. They stayed
there for a week, during which time Subject returned to Monte Carlo to get in
touch with Dolne DERAN, who mas to find an automobile with which the two would
return to Italy. He succeeded finally in reaching Monte Carlo, traveling by
any means available. Dolne DLMAN had found a Fiat (Balilla) which they bought
for 35,000 French francs from a salesman in Monte Carlo named CURTI. GREal
had left Monte Carlo two weeks before, but Prince COLONNA Was still there.
Dolne DLMAN and his wife returned to Italy with Subject. Subject returned to
CCUTI ts home, where he joined his mistress, while Dolne OMAN and his wife
stayed at the Canale dfOro Hotel in Sale.
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2. Since the automobile they had bought in France was in very poor condition,and had in fact broken down, Subject took it to the German repair shop inSale, where it was repaired fres after Subject had presented the document
given him by the Paris Commind. In the meantime Dolne WEAN went to Varese,
and from there to ?Ilan, and finally to COMO, while Subject, Nargherita
Saall, and a certain ETETRICH, a German living foriewky in San Remo and
suffering from tuberculosis, stayed in Guazzora.

3. They had been in Guaazora for about a month when Subject received a letter
froq Dolne DMANin Como asking him to come visit him. Subject took =MICH
along with him and left him with Damns 	 because the latter did not speak
Italian. .en Subject arrived in Como, he learned that Dane MHO had al-
ready got in touch with an office corresponding to the Paris command, located
in Tavernola and directed by Gen. VIM HORSTIG. He had also contacted the
Plate Koreandantur in Como and a naval command there. DaBAN had not been
able to explain himself well, and he asked Subject to explain his invention
to Gen. HORSTIG and tell him at what point he had arrived, in his work. A
telegram Ws sent to Berlin, and it wee announced that a couaission of experts
was to be Sent from Berlin to Cone to examine Delete DaLN t s discovery, PEROXID
a substance which is supposed to make the aii in submtrines chemically pure.
In order to be closer to Dolne WW1, Subject moved to Como in October 1944
with Nargherita SASS, living first at the San Gottardo Hotel and later at
12 Via Garibaldi, in Villa Coeti Negretti,

4. At Villa Corti Negretti, Subject met Hans VON ROHR, alias RICHTLR„ allegedly.
of Gerran nationality, and presumably an 3D informer. Subject did not know
exactly what RICHTaR l s activities were, however, for he was net in close
touch with him.

5. During the San Rqzio period, Subject had net Hud(STURCHLM and his Swiss
mistress, Verne _9' , who exported flowers frarentrIMUra to Switzerland.
In November 1944etVernea KELLER by accident in Como. She was living at
the Olindo Inn on Via Garibaldi, and she said that she was in financial diffi-
culties. She said that she was engaged to narry a member of the §,B, a German
maned Gustel KREISCWAARN, who was then in Sesto Calendo with audyAIMS/LL, and
that she had given her fiance 70,000 lire and her typewriter to bey some
clothes. Subject went to Sesto Calende with Verena KELLER and learned that
KRETSCHMANN and HEMEL were really SS members and had returned to Berlin after
taking a naval assault boat piloting course in San Remo.

6. STURCHlaR came to Como later, and Subject agreed to take Verena KILLaU to
San Reno for 100,000 lire plus the cost of the gasoline. Subject traveled
with a laissez-passer issued to him by the UDA, with the adproval of the
Como Coanand. In Sun Remo she was to resume her work as a flower exporter.
.then they arrived, Subject went to see RalTall at the SD, to clear. Verona
KluILER, for she had been previously arrested by the SD and instructed not to
leave San Remo without permiseion - an order which she had disobeyed.
STURCHLER had given Subject a statement signed by a general in Uilan to the
effect that KELLM's flower exporting was in the interest of the '.;ehrfiracht.
He easily persuaded HAUTER to overlook her infraction of their order. lUITER
told Subject that her previous arrest had lasted far a period of two days
and had been the result of a preliminary refusal to report to the SD to ans-
wer questions regarding her flower business. After she was arrested, MUT-
SC121;11111 had worked for her release. Subject went to see It. HECKNan about
obtaining German trucks for shipping flowers, and HECKNER said that whenever
there were empty trucks available, they night be used for that purpose.
SPEISER. director of the Mafalda Hotel, also took a hand in this business.
After attending to these affairs Subject returned to Come. Thereafter, he
net STURCHLER several tines in Chasse, where he conducted his flower businees.
In April 1945, Subject had to take another trip to San Reno with Verena AN at,
after an alleged theft of 3,000,000 lire, which she said was stolen from_her.
EventealAy she confessed o having kept the sum for herself and had given a
portion to :lies 71ELPaOlE her traveling companion. (Subject learned these
facts later through PATTI; former member of the National Guard.)

7. In addition to his trips made on behalf of Verena KaLia, Subject also con-
tinued to concern himself with Dolne MAN and the technical commission ex-
pected from Berlin. The commission never arrived, however, and the Naval
Command in Como gave Dolne DEHAN a 35,000 lire liquidation fee and told him
to discontinue his research because the invention no longer was of interest.
During this period, Subject was living a very retired life, going out only
for occasional visits at the Kommandantur and to see Gen. VON HORSTIG in
Cernobbio, always on business pertaining to Dolne DEHAN I s inventions.
Nothing of interest happened between this period and the liberation.
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8. Subject was in Como at the time of the liberation. He was not bothered in
any way, and no measures were taken against him. He continued to live in
Como on his savings. In the liana:1 del Credit() Italiano he had a vault
containing about 150,000 lire and some documents which he withdrew in the
presence of an Allied officer, who examined the contents of the vault. Re
stayed in Como until 5 August 1946, when he wae arrested by the Como •uestura
and handed over to the SCI Unit Z in Genoa.

XVII, Additional Statements :Jade by AEILBACHER 

1. Further contact with Verona &Zia: On the night of 25 April 1945, Verona
eame to subject's home together with Rudy HEITSa74 and JartinlprIAN,

and all three spent the night there. They stayed in Subject's . home for
about two weeks, during which time HENSEL told Subject that he was a captain
in the SS and that he was being sought in. many places because . of his misdeed.
One of his operations had been the arrest in Prague of the secretary of the
former Austrian Chancellor SCHUSSNIG. .He-said that he also belonged to the
lerewolf organization, the structure of Which was So perfect that it ceuld.
resist for 50 yeara. .111 "inland there had been a price on hisllead. rtarlam

ms	
s,

who gave hielf up to thd Allies, said that HEMEL was a notoriously ;am,-
tical and dangeroue person, whose goalie would be cooked if he returned to
Germany now becaue4 of his Nazi past. After two weeks Vetena KaLER sent
Hasa. to Switzerland Clandestinely, paying about 140,000 lire to the men
who took him eared* the border and 400 Swiss franca for the taxi to Mimed.°
Prom the border. She had STURCHL611, refund her this last sum, saying that she
had wield it to transport herself and her luggage. Subject never saw masm
afterwards. In about June 1943, Verene 10214R, who was bringing suit'against
STURCHLM in an effort to win a certain percentage Of the profits of the
flower export business, asked Subject to sign a declaration to the effect that
STURCHLA had collaborated with the Nazis. She did net offer him any money.
Subject did not give her such a statement because he did not know anything
about STURCHLIR's activities and did not want to perjure himself. Verona
KELM was later arrested and there was no further talk of a signed statement.

2. Mars about Hans GRABaBla: Subject met the German Consul in San Remo, a
week after his arrival in San Remo, at a . variety show given for wounded .
Italians and Germans in San Remo and in which Subject's son Rolando parti-
cipated. Because Subject's wife was Jewish, GRABCRSKImas scandalised that.
Subject's son should have taken part in the performance. His next contact
with GRAIMSEY came on the occasion of his .arrest because of the Tint oretto
affair: On the occasion, GRABOUSKY again mentioned Subject's Jewish wife and
warned him that he was headed for Dachau. lien Subject mentioned SCHOLTZ's
name to GRABOZKY 0 he changed his attitUde completely, becoming more Polite
and even giving :is.rgherita SASSEN a letter to the German Anbassador in Rene.
(Subject states that he knew nothing about the letter at the tine.) He met
mamma again when he turned in his expired passport, after his release.
(HO picked up. his new onein Genoa when he prepared to leave for Berlin.)
:Alen Subject returned from Germany, GRAMM called him in and wanted to
know what he had been doing and whixt•he intended , to do in the future. Subject
tole him only that he was working for the . Abwehr, and pointed out that the
Fuehrer's Ten Commandments state that one should attend strictly to one's own
business. After that he rarely saw GRABOZKI, except on consular business.

3. CitABOASKY: Personality and Contacts: Subject describes GRABOjSKI as a fana-
tical Nazi, cruel, ambitious and a member either of the Gestapo or of the SD.
He came to San Remo from Paris. HO was incompetent in the consular field and
did not belong to the diplomatic corps. His work as Consul was merely a
cover fer.hie Gestapo or SD work. He had worked as a merchant in Belgium.
In San Remo his favorite pastime was sending Germans back to Germany. He had
a little intelligence network which watched German residents carefully. His
friends (probably informers) were the following:
a. A general who later joined the Partisans but was expelled by them for

unknown reasons. It was rumored that the Partisans intended to execute
'.hen he returned to San Remo, he was arrested by the Italian police

but released when GRAD:LEK! intervened. Thisleads one to believe that
the general had been working for GRABOVSKT all the time, even when he
pretended to be a Partisan.

aP.111.1I
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b, A colonel whose nano is not known was also in constant touch with
GRABO,Sa.

c. Ladi =CO was one of GRABWSKY's constant companions, and even went
to France with him, usually . to Paris. GRABO,Ailer had given him a travel
permit for France, in spite of the opposition of the Ventimiglia Pruf-
stelle. The permit was obtained through the Nilan Pre-retell.), which
was superior to the one in Ventimiglia.

da Aldo =CIA MO in. close contact with GRABo.sKi and often went to see
the latter's wife.

4. Subject is of the opinion that GRABO.ZEY had belonged to the Gestapo even
during his Paris period for he treated badly all those who had known him in
Paris. He had evident]; been sent to San Remo because the two Consuls that
had preceded him there haa been known to be anti-Nazi. GSCHIMIR, his pre-
decessor, was later killed after the attempt on Hitler e s life. After he
had settled in San Bente GRABOASKY kept in close touch with . R2SSCHECK or
RalYZECK, head of the Gestapo in Nice for all southern France who lived in
the Hermitage Hotel together with his co-workers Lt. LAREN:MUNN& and
Lt. GAUTHIat. Relations with these three were eltramaly cordial and were
undoubtedly pertinent to the work they had in common. They came to San Remo
frequently to see GRADCUSU, and he often visited them in Nice. GRABO.;SKY's
wife who had been his secretary, always accompanied her husband, both in
Italy and abroad, and it is therefore likely that she too belonged to his or-
ganization. She also attended meetinge he held at the Consulate with his col-
laborators.

5. ZILBACHaPs Certificate of Partisan Activity: In December 1944, when Sub-
ject was in Como, he took occasional trips to Milan, where he mat a certain
Mrs. nARIA (mu) in the Hotta pastry shop in Piazza S. Babila. Subject had
known her in San Reno, when she had a delicatessen shop there. She waa the
mistress of the Swiss Consul at Ospedaletti„ a /certain SCHWUTZER. She
bad helped Subject's Jewish wife to escape from San Remo when she seemed to
be threatened with arrest. She told Subject that a certain SIRICANO, an
accountant, whose wife was with MARIA, was imprisoned for his partisan acti-
vities in San Vittore, and that they were trying to secure his release. Sub-
ject was not able to do anything for her other than give SIRICANO's wife money
to support her for the time being. He later met other partisans. After the
liberation, he found that he needed a document in order to move about, and
asked nARIA whom he met at the Motta pastry shop, to try to get him a parti-
san document. •Athin a few days she gave him a partisan 'certificate, for
which she said that she had paid 30,000 lire. Subject reimbursed her and
gave her an extra 3,000 lire. He asked her to go to Como with him to secure
the signature of the vice-questor there CAPPUCCIO, a member of the Geaunist
Party. She complied with this wish, and CAPPUCCIO counter signed the state-
ment from the 114th Brigade uP". GAHANZINI fl to which MARIA belonged and
which was headed by URIC= who had signed the document.He did not pay
CAPPUCCIO anything for his signature. He does not know how MARIAL obtained
the certificate or whether she had actn any paid 30,000 lire for it.

6. Contact with SIRICANO, Partisan Chief: SIRICANO tried to get Subject a job
with the Italian polices but WAS unsuccessful. Later he introduced Subject
to a certain Lt. JEAN (Jean VIGNES) of the French police, who had core to
COMO with SIRICANO, HAMA, and another partisan of the 114th Brigade named
LO:23ARD0. They dined with Subject at his home and later left VIGNES alone
with Subject. The French lieutenant asked him to collaborate with him in
tracking down possible members of German intelligence organizations left be-
hind in Italy and particularly those who had worked in France. Subject save
him the names of Verena ILILER and the address of her lover Rudolf HEHSEL.
He also gave him GILIB0.15CDs name and that of HELLEPHA, the German-Consul in
Monte Carlo. *:;hen Lt. VIGUJiS returned to Como a second tine, he asked Subject
about his past and particularly what work he had done for Germany. 3hen he
returned a third time, he said that information about Subject was favorable.
He proposed that Subject find groups of persons and commercial firms prepared
to work now and in the future on behalf of France.
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Subject realized that VIGN2S was a member of the Deuxieme Bureau, and was
haw in his reply. Subject went to SIRICANO and suggested that he would
have preferred to work with Ararican agents, and asked him to see what he
could do for him. VIGNM had given Subject his telephone number in Nilan,
430073, with instructions to cull him if he had any news pertaining to his
proposition. After two months, Subject was called to SIRICANO s s office
at 3 via San Tecla, Milan, where he met MISS again and whom they told
that Subject would prefer to work with the Americans. VIZ= seemed sur-
prised, but did not make any objections, saying merely that Subject should
not tell the Americans that he had had contact with the Jeuxleme Bureau.
That was Subjects last contact with Lt. VIGNES.

The same day he was introduced to an American major in SIRICARO e s office.
The najor worked in Rome, but was about to be transferral to Ullan. Subject
describes him as about 55 years old, 1.68 114 tall, normal build, tyey hair,
with glasses. He spoke Italian prefectly and said that he was interested
in nambers of the SS, SD and Gestapo. He took notes about Subject and said
that he would look him up through SIRICANO when he came to Lilian again.
Subject heard later through SIO.Icaio that the major had been traneferred to
another station. Subject continued to be on friendly terms with SIRICANO,
and always went to nee him when he was in Man. Together they went to
visit Prof. 13MNAIN and his wife, who were staying at the Continental Hotel.
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XVIII. Cements

1. j.i012ACHat is intelliL;ent„ shrewd, and corrupt, ready to give his services
to any political group for the sake of money. He ma recognized as poli-
tically dangerous by the Italian police before and during the recent war,
and was branded as a suspected agent not only of the German secret service
but also of the Yrench service, as well as a man of dubious morality. He
knows what punishment awaits him for his many misdeeds, and persists in
denying them in spite of the relentless interrogation to which he was sub-
jected for several days. The fact that he has not told the truth may be
demonstrated by the following instances:

2. Subject declares that his first contact with the Jewehr was in 1941, but
it is to be assumed that he was working for the Abwehr long before that
date. The first job he did for SOHO= was in October 1941, yet, already
in the spring of that year, he had a laissez-passer issued by the French-
German authorities in Paris. Subject's etutement that he had secured this
permit through the intercession of the wife of SCHULTZ, then his mistress,
does not ring true.

3. Subject states that he, was always anti-Fascist and anti-Nazi. Yet the fact
remains that he threatened the German woman ELME with internment in DachRma
when she spoke against hia and SASiiip during his imprisonment in San UM.
During his stay in prison, he also ',Vote Mussolini a.very "fascist" letter
asking to be released. (km appendiX "A")

4. Subject tried persistantly to protect Margherita SASSEU, but it is obvious
that she was his collaborator as well as his mistress.

5. Contrary to Subject's declaration, he was in constant contact with GRABOaSKY,
an agent of the Gestapo, as well as with all the German commanders of the
cities he visited. These facts are evident from the interrogations of the
driver -ario CORTI and the typists ROLLER' and 31W:rel y employed at the San
Remo consulate. Subject made frequent visits to the NOntfleury Hotel in
Nice, headquarters of the German SD. Moreover, his traveling permit allowed
him to go everywhere, and he was able to have his automobile repai red free
of charge in a German military garage. Such considerations would hardly
have been given to an anti-Nazi.

6. Subject likeaise concealed his true relations with the inventors GH&ZI,
Prince COLONNA, and Dolne DIMAS. The past of these individuals is well
known, and there is no doubt that their scientific research served as cover
for intelligence work on behalf of the Germans.

7. AS for the Tintoretto, it is &mime that SCHOLTZ and ZILBACHER took ad-
vantage of their powerful position to get the famelus painting into their
hands. If Subject had been accused merely of having failed to declare the
painting to the customs officers at the border, the Guardia di Finanza would
have handled the case,not the PublicSecurity. It T47-UNrEEM-TEA kept
him in prison for three and a half months. In AUEUSt 1945, the wife of
Zaccarias BIRTSCHABSKY, the Russian antiquarian, Alessandra ataTscwmfer,
born in 11018COW, a French citizen, reported to the Guardia di Finanza of Pointe
San Luigi, asking for information about the painting by Tintoretto of the Doge
Pietro Loredano, allegedly stolen from her on 13 December 1942 by the German
la,ILBACHalt. (See Appendix "D")

S. The most blatant example of Subject's venality and general bad faith is
his contact with the Freach Lt. Jean VIGHZS, agent of the Deuxiene Bureau.
His denunciation to the French service of his Nazi collaborators for the
sake of money and also to save his own skin requires no further comment.

9. Recommendation: It is recommended that Subject be interned and repatriated
to Germany.
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usr OF PERSONALITIES

1. Dr. John PUNARDS: Anglo-American oculist living at the Ophthalmic Institute
in Paris in 1913.

2. (WA VON AnDRASSZ: First huaband of Clara LEVI, Subject's wife.

3. (Mather Hersmuon SCROLTE: Ministerial counsellor of the Ministry of Wartime
Production in Berlin; lived in San Remo at the Casa Berigo on Corso degli
Inglesi. Abwehr member, Subject e8 superior. About 48-9 years old, 1.75 m.
tall, robust, brown hair, bald in front; wears glasses.

4. Znecallas BIRTSCRANSKY: Russian antiquarian stateless, living in Monte Carlo;
owner of Tintoretto; 55 years old, 1.65 g6 t:11; robust build; bald; brown eyes.

Bernard GE: Former German naval captain;AiVing in Rome on Via or Vicolo
San Pietro in 1942. Later settled in San'ReMo on Corso 23 /farm. 56 years
old, 1.75 m. tall, slender, brown eyes, greying hair.

Count PERPANCHE: MeMber of French nobility; anti-Nazi living in San Remo; in
financial difficulties; °ailed to serve as interpreter with German Army, later
arrested and deported to Germany because of his anti-Nazi views.

9. HanARABOWSKT: 2grmatLegnesUAAlnjeggLin.1.9142...nna mensw almost c
a meMber of the geetem 58 years old, 1076 126 tall, robust, g
eyes, glasses. (See ax-4868, 4979).

10. ERME: German unman living in San Remo.
-*cause of her complaint about his morale,

11.>CROSENLE1TER: pwehr Colonel in Berlin who
old, 1,70 m. tail, simmer, groYrbg

12. Captain BAUER: ROSENLEITER's aide; 45 years old, 1.85 m. tall, robust, blond
hair.

130 Raoul GHEZEI: Engineer; Italian living in Monte Carlo. Worked on inventions
for the Germans. 55 years old, 1.75 m. tall, brown eyes and hair, oval face.
(See J72-6767).

14. Dolne pgRAN: Belgian, aREZZI l s co-worker in Monte Carlo; went to Switzerland
after liberation. 58 years old, 1075 X6 tall, slender, white hair, glasses.

15. Prince C0LONN4: GHEZZI's collaborator. 50 years old, 1.68 116 tall, black
hair, dark eyes; left Monte Carlo when the Germans withdrew. Subject did not
see him after that.

16. Mai, GM,: Member of the SD, went to Nice to examine inventions of GREZZI and
company. 45 Years old, 1.80's tail, robuet,.blaCk hair, brown eyes. (C)IC
Reports on MASSON, BLUMBERG, RUEGEL, RAUFF, SESSLER; JU-1443 0 1615, 2020;
JRX-594, 601, 635-A).

170 Werner VOHRINGER: Vfmliber of Abwehr,. formerly in San Rem. 47. years old, 1.63
m. tall, brown eyes and hair, glasses. Arrested. -(See . JRX-563; 574 579; 593;
660; 628; 645; JEK-7552; 3437; 4013; 5292; 5556; 7919).

18. Ceptain FCRSTER: Naval commander of Nice zone. 50 years old, 1.67 m. tall,
robust, bald.

19. HEIL or KEIL: Head of SD in Nice. 45 years old, 1.60 mi. tall, robust, blond,
-bald. (See JZX-5126, 5284; csracivr/sD so LENTZ KURFESS).

23. Ivan BERMAN: Now living in . Milan at 2 Corso Dino Compagni. A friwld of Sub-
ject, but allegedly not an informer for the Germans. A Jew.

5. Ladigae KARIM Hungarian, co-owner of Antonio CAMAGNO flower export firm
in San Remo. (See ax-3014).

6. SILSIERZHAN: Director ot Boringer Factory in Milan depending from Berlin "Diwag"
of which SCHOLTZ was director. Subject never saw him.

7.

8.

n8 air, light

Threatened with Dachau by Subject

gave Subject a mission. 61,1210.

-1.9--
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21, LARSEN: Of Danish origin. Friend of abject, living in same hotel in Monte
Carlo (Hotel De Palmiers). 50 years old, 1.65 m. tall, robust, brown hair,
slightly bald.

22. Mr., .and Mrs. PECCHINO: Cmners of Hotel de Palniers in Monte, Carlo.

23. X	 : Head of Abwrihr in San Remo. 45 years old, 1.65 06 tall, stout,
brown r.

24. Ceptl Gino PONZI: Subject met him at the Hotel de Falmiere. Later killed by
ROCCA in Ventimiglia. (JRX-595, 635-A).

25, Jacques SABATIER: French subject living in Regina Hotel in Monte Carlo and
working for VOHRILVER. Arrested. (JRX7586; 574; 563; 645; 579; JZZ-14; 560;
3037; 6346; 6611; 6886; 7705).

26. BernardSPORTSCH (orAsORTCHES): Swiss, secretary f Rei tntl inMonti
Carlo;, Lo	 av1 pariiaps confidant of VOHRINGER. 29
.fts•NOMMINIM:

years old, 1.76 m. tall, slender, dark eyes and hair. (See az-560; 574; 5633.
645-u; 3622; ..vx-2044; . 5053; 54111; . 5897).

27. to CORM: Driver. Already interrogated.

2$. 12.1001: German subject afflicted 'with tuberculosis, formerly in Sari Remo.
Now in Como.	 .

29. General VON HORSTIG: Head of Heereswaffenamt in Tavernola; contacted by Dolne
DEHAN,in Como.

30. Hans VON ROHR alias RICHTER: Agent working for Germans; Swiss, arrested.
(See CSDIC/CMF/SD 63 MARKHART Eva; ax-5063, 4985; Berne MSB-85).

31. Verena• KELIER: Arrested. (PIR-616).

32. RudolfAHENSEL: (See KELLER interrogation - P1R-616).

33. Hugo STURCWLER: (See KELLER interrogation - PIR-616).

34. Capt. Ceche REITER: Head of SD office in San Reno. 40 years old, 1.70 m.
tall, robust, reddish hair. (See CSDIC Reports RAUFF, SESSLER: JZX-1445; 5801;
5467; az-635-A).

35. -tnesto SPEISER: Former director of Mafalda Hotel in San Remo.

36, Gustel KRETSCHMANN: One of Verena KEILER's lovers; Subject never saw him.
(See JRX-5063).

37. Lt. Jack HECKNER: Commander of KdK Flot., 611, San Remo. 38 years old, 1.65
mi. tall, slender, brown eyes and hair. (JRX-5063, JZX-6598).

38. guan_mmcmgc: Friend of Ver-a KELLER.,

39. Martin NEUMANN: Friend of HENSEL who gave himself up to Allies after having
stayed with Subject in Como for two weeks.

40. Luigi ZUCCD: Italo-French, living in San Remo, friend and informer of GRABOTSKY.

41. RETSGECK: Head of Gestapo in Nice. Unknown to Subject. Killed on Russian
front. (Source, Felix).

42. ,;;;. LAUTENBRUNNER: SD officer, aide to RETSCECK, in Nice. Never seen by Subject.

43. It. GAUTHER: Idem.

44. MARIA: Partisan of 114th Brigade Garanzini who seCurelpartisan document for
Subject for 30,000 lire. 37 years old, 1.64 m. tall, slender, dark eyes and
hair.

-20-
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450 CAMCCIO: Vice-Questor in Como, Communist„ countersigned Subject !ø partisan
document.

46. SIRICANO: Partisan head of 114th Brigade; signed Subject's partisan certifi-
cate. Now living in Milan at 24 Via Camino.

47, LOMBARDO: Partisan of 114th Brigade.

40. Lt, Jean VIGNES: Fran& officer of French military mission in Milan; address
1041a Telesio; telephone No. 41073; offered Subject vork with Deuademe MX41=6

SECRET 


